



Effect the age and Cumulus Cells on morphological characteristics of bovine oocytes matured in n vitro maturation

Zainab Saif, Ali ALHag Obaid and Gassan Dhairab

Agriculture College, Al-Muthanna University, Iraq.

Received on 15/9/2024 Accepted on 22/9/2024 Published on 15/12/2024

Abstract

The current study was conducted in the postgraduate laboratory of the Department of Animal Production, College of Agriculture, Al-Muthanna University during the period from 11/11/2023 to 10/3/2024 to study the effect of age and the Cumulus Cells on the morphological characteristics of bovine oocytes in vitro maturation. The study included 416 cow ovaries in different ages distributed into two age groups with 1181 oocytes as follows: The first group 1-3 years included 216 ovaries, the second group 3 years and over included 200 ovaries .The cows ovaries were collected from the slaughterhouse in Al Samawah city immediately from slaughtered animals. The ovaries were placed in plastic boxes containing physiological solution and transferred to the lab within a period less than one hour after slaughtering of animals. The oocytes were collected from the ovaries by the aspiration method and assessed from the Morphological measurements . All oocytes were subjected to IVM using the culture medium 1640 RPMI. The results of the study showed that there were no significant differences ($P<0.05$) between oocyte groups according to the number of germinal aggregate layers in the percentages of immature, damaged and live oocytes IVM. The interaction between age groups and the number of germinal aggregate layers had a significant effect ($P<0.05$) on the percentages of immature, damaged, live and dead oocytes IVM

Key words: Age, Cumulus Cells, morphological, , bovine oocytes, IVM .

Introduction

Reproduction and fertility play a very important role in the economy of livestock farming[1]. Fertility is a primary biological and productive trait that affects meat and milk production in cattle[2], it is the decisive factor in milk and meat production[3], for farm animal husbandry, this means the ability to produce morphologically and physiologically healthy animals. Indicators of good reproduction in a cattle herd are obtaining one calf from one cow per year[4]. Maintaining reproductive capacity until 8-12 years of age [5]

The use of new developments or new biotechnologies in animal husbandry as a powerful tool to improve the genetic structure of animal herds and increase the selection of animals rapidly[6]. Assisted reproductive techniques (ART) play an important pivotal role in increasing the spread of superior genotypes, enhancing productivity as well as reducing the interval between two births in small ruminants[7].

In vivo fertilization is defined as the series of events resulting from the fusion of two parental gametes, the sperm from the male and the oocyte from the female, when they meet in the upper third of the fallopian tube in mammals. Fertilization involves several sequential steps including acrosome interaction, penetration of the zona pellucida, sperm-oocyte fusion, and membrane fusion[8].

Fertilization triggers a series of subsequent events that result from the fertilized oocyte to develop a new individual[9]. Robert Edwards was the first to develop this technique and was awarded the 2010 Nobel Prize in Physiology or Medicine[10].

The term "in vitro" refers to an environment outside the body where oocytes are matured and fertilized in a

petri dish[11]. In vitro embryo production is an effective technique for obtaining large numbers of embryos for transfer to recipient mothers[12].

The germinal cumulus cells are connected to the oocyte by TransZonal[13]. The germinal cumulus cells contain vacuoles through which the germinal cumulus cells are capable of transporting amino acids and nutrients resulting from metabolism that are essential for the growth and development of the oocyte[14]. The germinal cumulus cells are responsible for the confinement of the germinal vesicle (GV) nucleus during growth and completion of meiosis, by raising the level of cAMP between cells[15].

The aim of this study is to knowing the effect of age and the Cumulus Cells on the morphological and biological characteristics of bovine oocytes before in vitro maturation.

Materials and Methods:

The current study was conducted in the postgraduate laboratory of the College of Agriculture, Al-Muthanna University, Department of Animal Production, during the period from 11/19/2023 to 3/10/2024, to study the effect of age and the Cumulus Cells on the morphological and biological characteristics of cow oocytes after in vitro fertilization. The study included 1181 oocytes aspirated from 416 cow ovaries of different ages distributed into two age groups. The ovaries were distributed into the age groups as follows: The first group 1-3 years old included 216 ovaries, the second group 3 years old or older included 200 ovaries. The experiment included collect the ovaries from the slaughtered cows immediately after slaughtering in the slaughterhouses of Al-Samawah and Al-Rumaitha than transferring the ovaries to

the laboratory to aspirate the oocytes[16], distributed according to the age and the type of cumulus cells before subjected to the laboratory maturation using the culture medium Rbmi-1640.

Viability test:

The cows oocytes was subjected to the Viability test using the trypan blue dye before in vitro maturation trypan blue dye according to [17].

In vitro maturation:

The oocytes were washed three times using SMART containing 5% HSA to remove substances in follicular fluid. The immature oocytes were directly distributed in average of 5 oocytes per droplet (0.5mL) from culture medium, supplied with 10 IU/mL hCG, 5 IU/mL PMSG and 1µg/mL estradiol and cultured in four well dish and covered with liquid paraffin, then incubated for 24 h in CO₂ incubator (5% CO₂) at 38.5°C with 100% humidity [18]; [19]

Results and Discussion

Table (1) shows no significant effect ($P \leq 0.05$) on the percentage of mature oocytes among the oocyte categories classified according to the germinal cumulus layers. There was a significant effect ($P \leq 0.05$) on the percentage of immature oocytes among the germinal cumulus categories. The percentage was higher among the oocytes of the first category A classified according to the germinal cumulus layers than the second categories B, the third C and the fourth D,

the averages were (75.3 ± 1.19), (73.6 ± 1.50), (71.7 ± 2.61), (60.6 ± 5.78). This may be attributed to the important role of the germinal cumulus layers in regulating the accumulating cells and the growth and development of oocyte maturation[20].

[21] A indicated that the maturation rate of oocytes containing germinal cumulus cells was higher compared to oocytes that do not contain these cells. This is due to factors affecting the quality of oocytes, which include ovary collection, oocyte extraction process, animal age, and reproductive season. It is also affected by the environment during oocyte collection, ovary condition at extraction, and nutritional status. As for the percentage of damaged oocytes, the current study recorded significant differences ($P \leq 0.05$). The fourth category, D, recorded the highest average of (34.5 ± 9.40).

The results showed significant differences ($P \leq 0.05$) among the categories of oocytes classified according to the layers of the germinal aggregate between the second category and the third category in the percentage of live oocytes with an average of (83.3 ± 1.45), (70.4 ± 4.08), and between the second category and the fourth category with an average of (83.3 ± 1.45), (70.0 ± 9.57), as for the dead oocytes, the results showed no significant differences ($P \leq 0.05$) between the first category and the second category and the third category and the fourth category classified according to the layers of the germinal aggregate.

Table (1) Effect of bacterial aggregate on morphological and biological characteristics of bovine oocytes before in vitro maturation (mean \pm standard error).

Cumulus cells	Mature oocytes%	Immature oocytes%	Atretic oocytes %	Viable oocytes%	Dead oocytes %
3-4 layers	0.98 \pm 7.5	1.19 \pm 75.3 a	0.97 \pm 16.6 a	1.45 \pm 83.3 a	1.45 \pm 16.6
2-3 layers	.39 \pm 7.5 1	1.50 \pm 73.6 a	1.34 \pm 19.1 b	2.93 \pm 79.1 ab	2.90 \pm 19.5
1-2 layers	1.53 \pm 6.08	2.61 \pm 71.7 a	2.92 \pm 22.1 b	4.08 \pm 70.4 b	4.08 \pm 29.5
Denuded	3.4 \pm 9.59	5.78 \pm 60.6 b	9.40 \pm 34.5 b	9.57 \pm 70.0 b	9.57 \pm 34.0
Sig.	N. S	*	*	*	N. S

cow :Commented [MF1]

The mean is on the left and the :Commented [MF2]
.standard error is on the right in the entire table

7.5 \pm 0.98 :Commented [MF3]

98.6 The total percentages must be :Commented [MF4]
100% or close to that.

104 It is not possible? There is an :Commented [MF5]
.error

Table (2) shows that there was no significant effect of the interaction between age and bacterial aggregate on the percentages of mature oocytes before in vitro maturation, while there was a significant effect ($P \leq 0.05$) of the interaction between age and bacterial aggregate on the percentages of immature oocytes before in vitro maturation, as the first group classified according to bacterial aggregate layers of type A outperformed the fourth group for the first age and the fourth group type D for the second age with an average of (78.1 \pm 1.65), (66.6 \pm 6.66), (62.1 \pm 8.36) respectively, while there were significant differences ($P \leq 0.05$) for the interaction between age and germinal aggregate in the percentages of damaged oocytes before in vitro maturation. It decreased in the oocytes of the first category classified according to germinal aggregate layers A and the fourth category C for the second age was superior with an average of (27.9 \pm 1.33) over the other categories for the first and second ages with averages of (13.8 \pm 1.59), (20.0 \pm 1.61), (22.4 \pm 5.08), (26.5 \pm 66.1), (19.3 \pm 0.93), (17.9 \pm 2.27), (21.7 \pm 2.42).

The results of the current study indicated that there were significant differences

($P \leq 0.05$) for the interaction between age and germinal aggregate before in vitro maturation in the percentages of live oocytes, as the first group of type A was superior for the first age with an average of (86.6 \pm 3.33) and there were no significant differences between the first group and the second, third and fourth groups for the first age with an average of (82.6 \pm 20.67), (75.8 \pm 5.70), (71.6 \pm 4.18) and the first and second groups for the second age with an average of (84.0 \pm 2.04), (82.6 \pm 3.95).

The results of the current study showed that there were no significant differences in the interaction between the first age group and the bacterial aggregate in the percentages of dead oocytes before in vitro maturation, while the second age group and the fourth group D of the bacterial aggregate showed the highest significant difference ($P \leq 0.05$) with an average of (38.3 \pm 13.27), and significant differences ($P \leq 0.05$) appeared between the second age group and the fourth group of the bacterial aggregate with the first and second groups of the first age and the first and second groups of the second age with an average of (13.3 \pm 3.33), (17.3 \pm 20.67), (17.4 \pm 3.95), (15.9 \pm 2.04) respectively.

Table (2) Effect of age and bacterial accumulation on the morphological and vital characteristics of cow oocytes before in vitro maturation (mean \pm standard error).

Age group	Cumulus cells	Immature oocytes%	Mature oocytes%	Viable oocytes%	Atretic oocytes %	Dead oocytes %
1	3-4 layers	1.49 \pm 7.38	1.65 \pm 78.1 a	1.59 \pm 13.8 c	3.33 \pm 86.6 a	3.33 \pm 13.3 c
	2-3 layers	2.10 \pm 8.16	1.92 \pm 71.7 abc	1.61 \pm 20.0 bc	2.06 \pm 82.6 ab	2.06 \pm 17.3 bc
	1-2 layers	2.12 \pm 7.63	4.47 \pm 69.9 abc	5.08 \pm 22.4 bc	5.70 \pm 75.8 acb	5.70 \pm 24.2 acb
	Denuded	6.61 \pm 6.76	6.66 \pm 66.6 bc	6.61 \pm 26.5 b	4.18 \pm 71.6 acb	4.29 \pm 21.7 abc
2	3-4 layers	1.32 \pm 7.73	1.59 \pm 72.6 abc	0.93 \pm 19.3 bc	2.04 \pm 84.0 a	2.04 \pm 15.9 c
	2-3 layers	1.74 \pm 6.76	2.34 \pm 75.9 ab	2.27 \pm 17.9 bc	3.95 \pm 82.6 ab	3.95 \pm 17.4 bc
	1-2 layers	2.16 \pm 4.23	2.21 \pm 74.0 ab	2.42 \pm 21.7 cb	5.41 \pm 64.0 bc	5.41 \pm 36.0 ab
	Denuded	4.44 \pm 10.0	8.36 \pm 62.1 c	1.33 \pm 27.9 a	1.32 \pm 61.6 c	1.32 \pm 38.3 a
Sig.		S. N	*	*	*	*

Commented [MF9]: The mean is on the left and the standard error is on the right in the entire table.

Commented [MF7]: Viable oocytes%

Commented [MF8]: Atretic oocytes %

Commented [MF10]: The total percentages must be 100% or close to tha

Commented [MF11]: Averages with different letters within one column differ significantly from each other. * ($P \leq 0.05$).

References

- 1-Bulman, D.C. and G.E. Lamming (1978). milk progesterone levels in relation to conception, repeat breeding and factors influencing acyclicity in dairy cows. *journal reprod. fertil.*, 54(2): 447-45
- 2-Louda, F., Vanek, D. and A. Jezkova (2008). The application of biological principles in the management of reproduction of cows [In czech: uplatnění biologických zásad při řízení reprodukce plemenic]. 1st edition. raportín: vyzkumný ústav pro chov skotu, s.r.o.
- 3-Jezkova, A., Louda, F., Stadnik, L. and Rakos, M. (2004). factors affecting the fertility of dairy cattle [In czech: faktory ovlivňující plodnost dojeného skotu]. in: day of milk 2004. praha: czech university of life science prague, faculty of agrobiolgy, food and nutral resources, pp. 71–72.
- 4-Burдых, V., All, J., Wild and L.T. AL. (2004). reproduction in cattle herds [in czech: reproduction in cattle herds]. 1st edition. hradec králové: chovservis A.S.
- 5-Kudláč, E. And Elecko, J. (1987). veterinary obers and gynecology [in czech: veterinary obstetrics and gynecology]. 2ND edition. praha: Szn.
- 6-Yonas, D.M. (2023). Review on embryo transfer in cattle and its application. *Int. J. Adv. Res. Biol. Sci.*, 10(4): 71-87.
- 7-Viana, J.H.M. (2020). 2019 Statistics of embryo production and transfer in domestic farm animals. By Joao Viana, Chair – IETS Data Retrieval Committee (henrique.viana@embrapa.br) In: *Embryo Technology Newsletter*, v. 38, n.4.
- 8-Roth Z. (2020). reproductive physiology and endocrinology responses of cows exposed to environmental heat stress - experiences from the past and lessons for the present. *theriogenology* 155: 150-156.
- 9-Franasiak, J.M., E.J. Forman, G. Patounakis, K.Hong and H. Werner (2018). Investigating the impact of the timing of blastulation on implantation: management of embryoendometrial synchrony improves outcomes. *Human reproduction open*, 18(4): 22.
- 10-Abid M., K. Rupali, G. Islam, K. Gahlot and N.A. Khan (2013). Review Article IN VITRO FERTILIZATION. *Journal of Biological & Scientific Opinion* · Volume 1 (4):214-222.
- 11-Choe J., Archer J.S. and Shanks A.L. (2020). Vitro Fertilization. StatPearls Publishing; Treasure Island, FL, USA.
- 12-Reimundo, P., Romero, J. M. G., Perez, T. R., and Veiga, E. (2021). rhesus monkey and human ovarian oocytes. *nature*, 208:349.
- 13-Albertini DF, Combelles CMH, Benecchi E et al. 2001 Cellular basis for paracrine

regulation of ovarian follicle development. *Reproduction*, 121: 647–653.

14-Gilchrist, R.B., Lane M. and Thompson J.G. (2008). Oocyte-secreted factors: regulators of cumulus cell function and oocyte quality. *Hum Reprod Update*, 14:159-177.

15-Downs, S.M., Hudson E.R. and Hardie D.G. (2002). A Potential Role for AMP-Activated Protein Kinase in Meiotic Induction in Mouse Oocytes. *Dev Biol*. 245:200-212.

16-Collodel G., L. Gambera, A. Stendardi, F. Nerucci, C. Signorini, C. Pisani, M. Marcheselli, F.L. Vellucci, S.E. Pizzasegale, L. Micheli and E. Moretti (2023). Follicular Fluid Components in Reduced Ovarian Reserve, Endometriosis, and Idiopathic Infertility. *Int J Mol Sci*. Jan 30;24(3):2589.

17-Abd-Allah, S.M. 2010. Effects of storage conditions of dromedary Camel Ovaries on the Morphology, Viability And Development of Antral Follicular oocytes. *Anim. Reprod*. 7 (2): pp: 65-69.

18-Nogueira, D.; Romero, S.; Vanhoute, L. 2009. Oocyte in vitro maturation In:

Gardnerdk, weissman A, howles cm and Shoham z. editors. textbook of assisted reproductive technologies. laboratory and clinical Perspective. 3rded.. Informa healthcare uk:111-151.

19-Al-Saadoon, A.A. 2014. effect of cryopreservation technique on oocytes and early stage embryos in sheep. Ph.D, dissertation. collage of griculture, university of baghdad, Iraq. Bioemfontein South Africa.

20-Costa, R.B., Camargo, G.M.F., Diaz, I.D.P.S., Irano, N., Dias, M.M., Carvalheiro, R., Boligon, A.A., Baldi, F., Oliveira, H.N., Tonhati, H. and Albuquerque, L.G. (2015). Genome-wide association study of reproductive traits in Nellore heifers using Bayesian inference. *Genetics Selection Evolution* 47:1-9.

21-Atiayh ,S.S. 2011. Cryopreservation of iraqi sheep oocytes and in vitro produced embryos using local modified vitrification tools. Ph.D, Dissertation. Collage of Agriculture, University of Baghdad, Iraq.